
 
 
 
TO:  MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  ROB FITZROY, EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
 
DATE:  JULY 21, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: SHANDON SAN JUAN WATER DISTRICT ANNEXATION & SPHERE 

OF INFLUENCE APPLICATION STATUS; LAFCO NO. 4-R-21 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is respectfully recommended that the Commission receive and file this 
application status update on LAFCO File 4-R-21. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Background  
On December 27, 2021, LAFCO received an application for a sphere of 
influence (SOI) amendment and annexation to Shandon-San Juan Water 
District (SSJWD).  On January 20, 2022, the Commission received notice of 
the application at its regularly scheduled meeting to fulfill the requirements 
of government code section 56857.   
 
As required by law, LAFCO provided a response to the application within 30 
days.  On January 26, 2022, LAFCO staff provided a letter to the applicant 
that identified a number of items that needed to be resolved in order to 
continue processing the application.  LAFCO received responses in two parts 
on February 24, 2022, and March 25, 2022.  LAFCO staff reviewed the 
information provided and provided another response on May 11, 2022, see 
Attachment A.    
 
Shandon-San Juan Water District  
SSJWD was established as a water district in 2016/2017 primarily for the 
purposes of becoming a Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) under the 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).  The District was 
authorized by LAFCO to exercise powers listed in Water Code 34000 et al - 
California Water District.  LAFCO activated all powers under the Water Code 
with the exception of being able to provide sewer services and 
transfer/move/export water outside of the Basin.  The District was approved 
by the State of California to become a GSA in 2017.  Currently, the District  
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primarily functions as a GSA. On July 20, 2021, SSJWD established the following fees in 
order to represent landowner interests in implementing the Groundwater Sustainability 
Plan (GSP), which is a key responsibility of any GSA under SGMA. 

 
• Irrigated Land - $26.00 per acre 
• Non-Irrigated Land - $0.11 per acre 
• Residences - $7.50 per residence 
• De minimis level for single landowner - $25.00 

 
Proposed Annexation and SOI Amendment  
The proposed project includes an annexation of approximately 2,494 acres of property into 
the Shandon-San Juan Water District. The property is located in the unincorporated area of 
the County near Shandon on Shell Canyon Road (APN 037-321-016, 037-331-014).  A map 
of the proposed annexation area is included in Attachment B.  The annexation area is 
currently vacant and does not support any active agricultural operation, and no 
development is proposed at this time.  
 
Status Update  
LAFCO’s January 26, 2022, and May 11, 2022, letters identified an issue related to the 
annexation and expansion into an area in which the County of San Luis Obispo is the 
exclusive GSA per Water Code Section 10723.8.  Our letter noted that at a minimum, LAFCO 
would need written confirmation from the County GSA that they would agree to a 
boundary change and relinquish their GSA authority overlying the proposed annexation 
area, preferably an agreement/resolution document to support such a change.  This is 
necessary for several reasons, the primary reason however is because SSJWD is a GSA, and 
under SGMA (Section 10723.8), GSA boundaries cannot overlap.   
 
LAFCO staff has coordinated with County staff on this matter.  Based on past actions of the 
Board of Supervisors, County staff are of the position that the County GSA will not 
withdraw from serving as the GSA within the proposed annexation area at this time.  Until 
County GSA and SSJWD come to an agreement about GSA authority in the subject area, 
LAFCO cannot continue to process an application because the proposal would conflict with 
state law (SGMA) due to the overlapping issue. 
 
In terms of LAFCO processing requirements, the Cortese, Knox, Hertzberg Act, specific 
actions and items must be completed and provided prior to an application being presented 
to the Commission for action.  At this point in time, this application is not ready for 
Commission consideration due to the aforementioned.  This situation is much like when 
there is an application for annexation to a district or city for services, LAFCO is required to 
consult with the affected agencies to ensure they support the request. Affected agencies’ 
support for an annexation or other action is required.  If a district does not support a 
request, application processing may be terminated or placed on hold until an issue is 
resolved.  Another aspect of affected agency support relates to tax negotiations.  LAFCO is 
required to commence a tax exchange negotiation between an affected agency (in this case 
SSJWD) and the County prior to deeming the application complete (as noted in LAFCO’s 
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January 26, 2022, letter).  In this circumstance, a prerequisite to initiating a tax exchange, 
would be to obtain confirmation from the County GSA as to whether they are willing to 
relinquish authority in the proposed annexation area, as they are the directly affected 
agency of this proposal.  As noted above, we have consulted with County staff and there 
does not appear to be support for this request at this point in time.  
 
Conclusions for File 4-R-21 
LAFCO must place the application on hold until the above matter is resolved between 
SSJWD and the County.  LAFCO cannot process a proposal that conflicts with state law or 
the Cortese, Knox, Hertzberg Act. Our May 11, 2022, identified two options for the 
applicant to move forward with: 
 
1. Coordinate with the County GSA to identify possible solutions.  If there is a favorable 

outcome, the applicant may reengage LAFCO to continue processing the application. 
2. Withdraw the application and re-submit at a later date when the GSA issue has been 

resolved.  
 
Implications for Future Applications 
Regarding future annexation applications, it is expected that similar circumstances would 
result for any other applications received for annexation wherein the annexation area 
would expand into County GSA authority.  There is a total of four GSAs in the Paso Robles 
Groundwater Basin, and those include SSJWD, City of Paso Robles, San Miguel Community 
Services District, and County of San Luis Obispo. Should any additional annexation 
applications be submitted, it may result in a similar situation.  Nonetheless, LAFCO will 
process any annexation applications on a case-by-case basis and coordinate with affected 
agencies as required.  
 
 
Attachment A:  LAFCO Response Letter Dated May 11, 2022  
 
Attachment B: Location Map   
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